
 

 

3 Washington Street 
Keene, NH  03431 

(603) 352-5440 
KeeneNH.gov 

 

 

Congregate Living & Social Services Licensing Board 
Tuesday, April 22, 2025, 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers, 2nd fl of City Hall, 3 Washington St. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

I. Call to Order:   Roll Call 
 

II. Minutes of Previous Meeting:   March 25, 2025 
 

III. Unfinished Business: CLSS-2025-05, American House Keene, has paid their application fee and their 
license has been issued. 

 

IV. Applications: 
 

Continued CLSS-2025-02: Applicant, Patricia Forman, House Supervisor for Emerald House, is 
requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social Services License for a Residential Care 
Facility, located 32 Emerald St., that is in the Downtown Growth District and as defined in 
Chapter 46, Article X of the Keene City Ordinances. 
 
CLSS-2025-13: Applicant, Karen Richi, Administrative Director for Monadnock Peer Support, is 
requesting a Congregate Living & Social Services License for a Small Group Home, located at 
24 Vernon St., and is in the Downtown Core District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of 
the Keene City Ordinances 
 
CLSS-2025-14: Applicant, Samual Lake, Executive Director for Keene Serenity Center, is 
requesting a Congregate Living & Social Services License for a Group Resource Center, located 
at 24 Vernon St., and is in the Downtown Core District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of 
the Keene City Ordinances 
 

 
 

I. New Business: 
 

II. Non-Public Session: (if required) 
  

III. Adjournment: 

Page 1 of 67



Page intensionally left blank

Page 2 of 67



City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

3 

4 

CONGREGATE LIVING AND SOCIAL SERVICES LICENSING BOARD 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

7 

Tuesday, March 25, 2025 6:00 PM Council Chambers, 

City Hall 

Members Present: 

Medard Kopczynski, Vice Chair 

Alison Welsh 

Jennifer Seher 

Tom Savastano 

Members Not Present: 

Andrew Oram, Chair 

Staff Present: 

Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner 

8 

9 

I. Call to Order: Roll Call10 

11 

Vice Chair Kopczynski called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and declared a quorum present. 12 

13 

II. Minutes of Previous Meeting: February 25, 2025 14 

15 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to adopt February 25, 2025, minutes was duly seconded by Mr. 16 

Savastano. The motion carried unanimously.  17 

18 

III. Unfinished Business: 19 

20 

None presented. 21 

22 

IV. Applications: 23 

24 

The applications were heard out of the order presented on the meeting agenda. 25 

26 

Ms. Seher noted that she had a family member living at one of the applicant facilities and asked 27 

the Board if she should be recused. The Vice Chair noted that usually recusal would be for 28 

pecuniary matters and confirmed that Ms. Seher’s interests were not pecuniary. Ms. Welsh 29 

agreed, she did not think Ms. Seher’s interests were pecuniary. A motion by Ms. Welsh to allow 30 

Ms. Seher to be present and vote for all applications at this meeting was duly seconded by Mr. 31 

Savastano and the motion carried unanimously.  32 

33 

Page 3 of 67



Ms. Welsh notified the Board of her non-pecuniary interest related to Live Free Recovery 34 

because members of her program were residing there. Vice Chair Kopczynski said Ms. Welsh’s 35 

interest was to provide service to clients who were residents of some of these applicants, he did 36 

not think it was pecuniary. Ms. Welsh confirmed it was not pecuniary. A motion by Mr. 37 

Savastano to allow Ms. Welsh to vote on all applications at this meeting was duly seconded by 38 

Ms. Seher and the motion carried unanimously.  39 

 40 

A) CLSS-2025-02: Applicant, Patricia Forman, House Supervisor for Emerald 41 

House, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social Services License 42 

for a Residential Care Facility, located 32 Emerald St., and is in the 43 

Downtown Growth District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of the 44 

Keene City Ordinances. 45 

 46 

The applicant could not be present. A motion by Ms. Welsh to continue application CLSS-2025-47 

02 until April 22, 2025, the next regular meeting of the Congregate Living and Social Service 48 

Licensing Board was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and the motion carried unanimously.  49 

 50 

B) Continued: CLSS-2025-05: Applicant, Hilary Seifer, Executive Director for 51 

American House Keene, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social 52 

Services License for a Residential Care Facility, located at 197 Water St., and 53 

is in the Business Growth & Reuse District and as defined in Chapter 46, 54 

Article X of the Keene City Ordinances. 55 

 56 

Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant, Hilary Seifer, Executive Director for American 57 

House Keene, who had nothing to add.  58 

 59 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 60 

American House Keene was requesting a renewal for a Residential Care Facility at 197 Water 61 

Street in the Business Growth & Reuse District. American House Keene operated this facility, 62 

including 109 apartments with 144 NH-licensed Assisted Living Residential Care beds, along 63 

with business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second Congregate Living & Social 64 

Services (CLSS) renewal sought by American House Keene for the 197 Water Street property. 65 

Staff reported that this application was complete, and no changes were provided to their 66 

application except that the Neighborhood Plan was updated. There were no complaints on file for 67 

the property.  68 

 69 

The Board briefly discussed that for renewal, it would learn about any changes from staff, the 70 

applicant, or the public.   71 

 72 

There were no public comments.  73 

 74 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  75 

 76 

Page 4 of 67



The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 77 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 78 

 79 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 80 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 81 

codes. 82 

 83 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 84 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  85 

 86 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 87 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 88 

 89 

A motion by Mr. Savastano to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and 90 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  91 

 92 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 93 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 94 

 95 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and the 96 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  97 

 98 

A motion by Mr. Savastano was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh to approve CLSS-2025-05 for the 99 

American House Keene to operate a Residential Care Facility located at 197 Water Street, with 100 

the following condition: the payment is to be received for the application by April 22nd, 2025. 101 

The motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  102 

 103 

C) Continued: CLSS-2025-07: Applicant, Gregg Burdett, Executive Director for 104 

Covenant Living of Keene, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & 105 

Social Services License for a Residential Care Facility, located 95 Wyman 106 

Rd., and is in the Rural District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of 107 

the Keene City Ordinances. 108 

 109 

Vice Chair Kopczynski asked for staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 110 

Covenant Living of Keene operated this Residential Care Facility consisting of 140 independent 111 

living units, 43 assisted living units, 18 memory support units, and 20 skilled nursing beds, along 112 

with business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS renewal sought by 113 

Covenant Living of Keene for the 100 Wyman Road property. No changes have been made to 114 

their documentation. Staff found their application to be complete. Community Development’s 115 

inspection was completed on January 16, 2025. There were no departmental comments from 116 

Property & Housing, Fire, or Police. Mr. Hagan said there were no complaints on file for the 117 

property,  118 

 119 

Page 5 of 67



Gregg Burdett, Executive Director for Covenant Living of Keene, reported no changes to 120 

operations.  121 

 122 

Ms. Welsh asked if the application fee was submitted. Mr. Hagan said yes.  123 

 124 

There were no public comments.  125 

 126 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  127 

 128 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 129 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 130 

 131 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 132 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 133 

codes. 134 

 135 

A motion by Mr. Savastano to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and 136 

the motion carried unanimously.  137 

 138 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 139 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 140 

 141 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 142 

the motion carried unanimously.  143 

 144 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 145 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 146 

 147 

A motion by Mr. Savastano to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and 148 

the motion carried unanimously.  149 

 150 

A motion by Ms. Seher was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano to approve CLSS-2025-07 for the 151 

Covenant Living of Keene to operate a Residential Care Facility located at 100 Wyman Road. 152 

The motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  153 

 154 

Mr. Burdett complimented the Board Clerk, Corinne Marcou, for her diligent work to keep the 155 

applicants in line. He appreciated her efforts.  156 

 157 

D) CLSS-2025-01: Applicant, Melissa Castor, Executive Director for Alpine 158 

Healthcare, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social Services 159 

License for a Residential Care Facility, located at 298 Main St., and is in the 160 

High Density District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of the Keene 161 

City Ordinances. 162 

Page 6 of 67



Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant Melissa Castor, Executive Director for Alpine 163 

Healthcare, present to request the second license for the facility.  164 

 165 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 166 

Alpine Healthcare operated this facility, including 85 NH-Licensed long-term care beds, along 167 

with business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS renewal sought by 168 

Alpine Healthcare for this property at 298 Main Street. No changes had been made to their 169 

documentation and staff found their application to be complete, as the fee had been paid. 170 

Community Development’s inspection was completed on February 4, 2025, and Fire, Housing & 171 

Property, and Police Departments all had no comments. There were no complaints on record for 172 

this property. Vice Chair Kopczynski recalled Alpine Healthcare having a fairly active outreach 173 

program and Mr. Hagan agreed.  174 

 175 

Ms. Seher asked how full the facility was at this time. Ms. Castor said 79.  176 

 177 

There were no public comments.  178 

 179 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  180 

 181 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 182 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 183 

 184 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 185 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 186 

codes. 187 

 188 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 189 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  190 

 191 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 192 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 193 

 194 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 195 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  196 

 197 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 198 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 199 

 200 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 201 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  202 

 203 

Page 7 of 67



A motion by Ms. Seher was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh to approve CLSS-2025-01 for Alpine 204 

Healthcare to operate a Residential Care Facility located at 298 Main Street. The motion carried 205 

unanimously on a vote of 4–0. 206 

 207 

E) CLSS-2025-03: Applicant, Jennifer Houston, Executive Director for Live 208 

Free Recovery, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social Services 209 

License for a Residential Drug/Alcohol Treatment Facility, located at 881 210 

Marlboro Rd., and is in the Rural District and as defined in Chapter 46, 211 

Article X of the Keene City Ordinances. 212 

 213 

Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant, Jennifer Houston, Executive Director for Live 214 

Free Recovery, who reported no changes in operations or outreach, and said all was going well. 215 

 216 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 217 

Live Free Recovery Services operated this facility, including 28 NH-licensed Drug and Alcohol 218 

treatment beds, along with business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS 219 

renewal sought by Live Free Recovery Services for this facility property at 881 Marlboro Road. 220 

No changes had been made to their documentation and staff found their application to be 221 

complete, as the fee had been paid. Community Development’s inspection was completed on 222 

February 4, 2025, and Fire, Housing & Property, and Police Departments all had no comments. 223 

Mr. Hagan said there were no complaints on record for this property.  224 

 225 

There were no public comments.  226 

  227 

Ms. Seher noted that the residential treatment could be up to 30 days and asked if someone 228 

helped with transition back into the community after the 30 days. Ms. Houston said yes, Live 229 

Free Recovery Services has a Case Manager, who sets up aftercare services for clients. Ms. 230 

Seher thought that it would be great for the community to know that and added that it would be 231 

awesome to have data on how successful that aftercare service is. 232 

 233 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  234 

 235 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 236 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 237 

 238 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 239 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 240 

codes. 241 

 242 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and the 243 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  244 

 245 

Page 8 of 67



Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 246 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 247 

 248 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and the 249 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  250 

 251 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 252 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 253 

 254 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and the 255 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  256 

 257 

A motion by Mr. Savastano was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh to approve CLSS-2025-03 for 258 

Live Free Recovery Services LLC to operate a Residential Drug and Alcohol Treatment Facility 259 

located at 881 Marlboro Rd. The motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0. 260 

 261 

F) CLSS-2025-04: Applicant, Jennifer Houston, Executive Director for Live 262 

Free Recovery, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social Services 263 

License for a Residential Drug/Alcohol Treatment Facility, located at 106 264 

Roxbury St., and is in the Downtown Edge District and as defined in Chapter 265 

46, Article X of the Keene City Ordinances. 266 

 267 

Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant, Jennifer Houston, Executive Director for Live 268 

Free Recovery, who reported no changes in operations or outreach, and said all was going well. 269 

The Vice Chair said he had heard of no complaints.  270 

 271 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 272 

Live Free Recovery Services operated this facility, including 28 NH-Licensed Drug and Alcohol 273 

Treatment beds, along with business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS 274 

renewal sought by Live Free Recovery Services for this property at 106 Roxbury Street. No 275 

changes had been made to their documentation and staff found their application to be complete, 276 

with all fees paid. Community Development’s inspection was completed on February 4, 2025, 277 

and Fire, Housing & Property, and Police Departments all had no comments. Mr. Hagan said 278 

there were no complaints on record for this property.  279 

 280 

Ms. Seher asked for an update on the applicant’s Neighborhood Plan that they put so much effort 281 

into the previous year. Ms. Houston replied that she had tried to be as open as possible with 282 

neighbors, noting that there was a lot of moving population, so she had not had direct contact 283 

with many people. She did know most of the landlords, calling that great. She said Live Free 284 

Recovery had done a lot of other work in terms of the whole community to be partners with other 285 

agencies. The neighborhood is harder. She also has to protect the anonymity of her clients. Ms. 286 

Seher appreciated the relationship with the landlords, calling it half the battle. Vice Chair 287 

Kopczynski referred Ms. Houston to the East Side Group that had organized and was meeting 288 

Page 9 of 67



monthly (first Monday), which Ms. Houston was not yet familiar with. The Group was originally 289 

involved with the Skate Park, soccer fields, and Hundred Nights. Ms. Houston added that she 290 

just did a presentation to the Rotary Club and was connected with Monadnock Youth Prevention. 291 

Vice Chair Kopczynski said those would be good additions to the Communications Plan during 292 

renewal, as those things are key to successful operations. 293 

 294 

No call for public comment (It was mentioned by Ms. Welsh once the application was already 295 

adopted).  296 

 297 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  298 

 299 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 300 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 301 

 302 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 303 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 304 

codes. 305 

 306 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 307 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  308 

 309 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 310 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 311 

 312 

A motion by Mr. Savastano to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and 313 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  314 

 315 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 316 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 317 

 318 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 319 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  320 

 321 

A motion by Ms. Welsh was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano to approve CLSS-2025-04 for 322 

Live Free Recovery Services LLC to operate a Residential Drug and Alcohol Treatment Facility 323 

located at 106 Roxbury Street. The motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  324 

 325 

G) CLSS-2025-06: Applicant, Jay Haston, Executive Director for Cedarcrest 326 

Center, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & Social Services License 327 

for a Residential Care Facility, located at 91 Maple Ave., and is in the Low 328 

Density District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of the Keene City 329 

Ordinances. 330 

 331 

Page 10 of 67



Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant’s representative, Kristen Target, Director of 332 

Programs at Cedarcrest. Ms. Target reported no significant changes. Bed approval though July 1, 333 

2025, was approved for up to 28 residents (vs. 26 in 2024). Without construction, they can 334 

comfortably allow 27 residents.  335 

 336 

Ms. Welsh complimented the thoroughness and detail of the application, especially the really 337 

interesting Neighborhood Relations Plan. She said it should be a template.  338 

 339 

There were no public comments.  340 

 341 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 342 

Cedarcrest Inc operated this facility, including 28 NH-Licensed ICF/IID beds, along with 343 

business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS renewal sought by 344 

Cedarcrest Inc for the 91 Maple Street property. The only significant change was the increase in 345 

capacity from 26 to 28 beds, which was made to their documentation. Staff found their 346 

application to be complete. Community Development’s inspection was completed on November 347 

12, 2024, and Fire, Housing & Property, and Police Departments all had no comments. Mr. 348 

Hagan said there were no complaints on record for this property.  349 

 350 

Ms. Seher asked how many residents were onsite at this time. Ms. Target said 25. Ms. Seher 351 

asked if 23–25 was typical? Ms. Target said yes, explaining their part of their short-term and 352 

respite model that causes the census to fluctuate weekly.  353 

 354 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  355 

 356 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 357 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 358 

 359 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 360 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 361 

codes. 362 

 363 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 364 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  365 

 366 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 367 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 368 

 369 

A motion by Mr. Savastano to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and 370 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  371 

 372 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 373 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 374 

Page 11 of 67



A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and the 375 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  376 

 377 

A motion by Mr. Savastano was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh to approve CLSS-2025-06 for 378 

Cedarcrest Inc to operate a Residential Care Facility located at 91 Maple Avenue. The motion 379 

carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0. 380 

 381 

Mr. Hagan mentioned that Cedarcrest was also working on an energy efficiency project that 382 

would be great for the community and in-line with the Master Plan update. 383 

 384 

H) Continued: CLSS-2025-08: Applicant, Amanda McSweeney, Executive 385 

Director for Keene Center Genesis Healthcare, is requesting a renewal 386 

Congregate Living & Social Services License for a Residential Care Facility, 387 

located at 677 Court St., and is in the High Density District and as defined in 388 

Chapter 46, Article X of the Keene City Ordinances. 389 

 390 

Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant, Amanda McSweeney, Executive Director for 391 

Keene Center Genesis Healthcare, who reported no changes.  392 

 393 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 394 

Keene Center Genesis Health Care operated this facility, including 106 NH-Licensed Nursing 395 

Home beds, along with business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS 396 

renewal sought by Keene Center Genesis Health Care for the 677 Court Street property. No 397 

changes have been made to their documentation. Staff found their application to be complete and 398 

all fees were paid. Community Development’s inspection was completed on January 16, 2025, 399 

and Fire, Housing & Property, and Police Departments all had no comments. Mr. Hagan said 400 

there were no complaints on record for this property. 401 

 402 

Ms. Seher asked the facility’s current census. Ms. McSweeney said the average daily for March 403 

was 82. Ms. Seher asked if that was typical. Ms. McSweeney said they liked to operate in the 404 

lower 90s, but it would ebb and flow.  405 

 406 

There were no public comments.  407 

 408 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  409 

 410 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 411 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 412 

 413 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 414 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 415 

codes. 416 

 417 

Page 12 of 67



A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Seher and the 418 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  419 

 420 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 421 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 422 

 423 

A motion by Ms. Seher to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and the 424 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  425 

 426 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 427 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 428 

 429 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 430 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  431 

 432 

A motion by Ms. Welsh was duly seconded by Ms. Seher to approve CLSS-2025-08 for the 433 

Keene Center Genesis Health Care to operate a Residential Care Facility located at 677 Court 434 

Street. The motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0. 435 

 436 

I) Continued: CLSS-2025-09: Applicant, Michael Johnson, Executive Director 437 

for Langdon Place of Keene, is requesting a renewal Congregate Living & 438 

Social Services License for a Residential Care Facility, located at 136 Arch 439 

St., and is in the Rural District and as defined in Chapter 46, Article X of the 440 

Keene City Ordinances. 441 

 442 

Vice Chair Kopczynski welcomed the applicant, Michael Johnson, Executive Director for 443 

Langdon Place of Keene, who reported no changes. Vice Chair Kopczynski asked how 444 

communications were. Mr. Johnson said they had two great neighbors and despite some loud 445 

traffic from time to time going across the bridge, he thought things were going well. 446 

Additionally, Mr. Johnson said that sometimes their center could be a throughway from Arch St. 447 

to Rt. 9, which he called frustrating but said they cannot really manage; they have “Child At 448 

Play” signs for their neighbors and speed signs on their property.  449 

 450 

There were no public comments.  451 

 452 

Ms. Seher thanked the applicant because she was at Langdon Place the day of this meeting and 453 

met their amazing staff. She appreciated what they were doing by welcoming people and trying 454 

to meet them where they are as a long-term facility.  455 

 456 

Vice Chair Kopczynski requested staff comments. Mike Hagan, Plans Examiner, reported that 457 

Langdon Place of Keene operated this facility, including 156 NH-licensed beds in the Supported 458 

Residential Care section and 24 NH-licensed beds in the Nursing Home section, along with 459 

business operations at this onsite facility. This was the second CLSS renewal sought by Langdon 460 

Page 13 of 67



Place of Keene for the 136 Arch Street property. Community Development’s inspection was 461 

completed on January 16, 2025, and Fire, Housing & Property, and Police Departments all had 462 

no comments. Mr. Hagan said there were no complaints on record for this property. 463 

 464 

Ms. Welsh asked the facility’s current census. Mr. Johnson said 117, and typically it was 115–465 

120. Mr. Savastano asked the difference between Supported Residential Care and Nursing Home 466 

Care. Mr. Johnson said Langdon Place had two operating licenses, one for the 25-bed Nursing 467 

Home and the remainder for the licensed Supported Residential Care, meaning assisted living. 468 

 469 

The Board considered the three criteria for approving the application.  470 

 471 

The licensing board shall consider the following criteria when evaluating whether to approve, 472 

renew, or deny a congregate living and social services license application. 473 

 474 

Criteria 1: The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 475 

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life safety 476 

codes. 477 

 478 

A motion by Ms. Welsh to find that Criteria 1 was met was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano and 479 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4-0.  480 

 481 

Criteria 2: The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration 482 

that adversely affects the surrounding area. 483 

 484 

A motion by Ms. Seher to find that Criteria 2 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and the 485 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4-0.  486 

 487 

Criteria 3: The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 488 

pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 489 

 490 

A motion by Mr. Savastano to find that Criteria 3 was met was duly seconded by Ms. Welsh and 491 

the motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4-0.  492 

 493 

A motion by Ms. Welsh was duly seconded by Mr. Savastano to approve CLSS-2025-09 for the 494 

Langdon Place of Keene to operate a Residential Care Facility located at 136 Arch Street. The 495 

motion carried unanimously on a vote of 4–0.  496 

 497 

V. New Business: 498 

 499 

None presented. 500 

 501 

VI. Non-Public Session: (if required) 502 

VII. Adjournment 503 

Page 14 of 67



There being no further business, Vice Chair Kopczynski adjourned the meeting at 6:58 PM. 504 

 505 

Respectfully submitted by, 506 

Katryna Kibler, Minute Taker 507 

March 31, 2025 508 

 509 

Reviewed and edited by, 510 

Corinne Marcou, Board Clerk 511 

Page 15 of 67



Page intentionally left blank

Page 16 of 67



CLSS-2025-02 – Residential Care Facility – Emerald House, 32 Emerald Street 

Request: 
Applicant Patricia Forman, House Supervisor for Monadnock Family Services DBA Emerald 
House, requests a license for a Residential Care Facility at the property located at 32 Emerald 
Street and is in the Downtown Growth District.  

Background: 
Emerald House operates this facility including 10 beds along with business operations at this 
onsite facility 

This is the second CLSS renewal sought by Live Free Recovery Services for this facility. 

Completeness: 
The property at 32 Emerald Street is seeking their second renewal. No changes have been made 
to their documentation. Staff find their application to be incomplete as the fee has not been paid. 

Inspections: 

Community Development’s inspection was completed on February 4, 2025 

Departmental Comments: 
 Property & Housing: No Comments 

 Fire Department: No Comments 

 Police Department: No Comments 

Criteria Review: 
1) The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life
safety codes.

2) The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration that
adversely affects the surrounding area.

3) The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic,
pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions.

Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended: 

Move to approve CLSS-2025-02 for Monadnock Family Services DBA Emerald House to operate 
a Residential Care Facility located at 32 Emerald Street. 

Page 17 of 67



~. City of Keene, NH 

For Office Use Only; -J 
ca,eNo.(.l~' d 
Date Filled 0~4 
Rec'dBy {!,,cvi ~~~~" 

Congregate Living & Social Services Page _L_of <--i 
Tax Map#SV~f~')-License Application Zonlng District: ~ 

If you have questions on how to complete this form, please call: (603) 352-5440 or email: communltydevelopment@keenenh.gov 

SECTION 1: LICENSE TYPE 

1 J Group Home, Small 

Q Group Resource Center . 

0 Homeless Shelter 

Q Lodging House 

0 Drug Treatment Center 

Q Fraternity/Sorority 

0 Group Home, Large Q Residential Drug/Alcohol Treatment Facility (IJ Residential Care Facility 

OWNER APPLICANT 

NAME/COMPANY: NAME/COMPANY: . . 
Monadnock Affordable Housing Corp Mondadnock Family Services 

MAILtNGADDREss: 831 Court St Keene, NH 03431 MAIUNGADDRESS: 32 Emerald St Keene, NH 03431 

PHONE: (603) 352-6161 

EMAIL: ·meehan@keenehousing.org 

AUTHORIZED AGENT 
(if different than owner/Applicant) 

NAME/COMPANY: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: DATE: 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

PHONE: (603) 352-6649 
EMAIL: pforman@mfs.org 
SIGNATURE: Patricia 

Forman 
Digilally signed by DATE•. 
Plllr1cia Fonnan 
Date:2024.11.21 11/21/24 
08:01 :52 -05'00' 

PRINTED NAME: p . . F TITLE: 
atncia orman Residential Se 

OPERATOR/ MANAGER 
(Point of 24-hour contact, If different than Owner/Applicant) 

✓ measowner 

NAME/COMPANY: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: DATE: 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

Pagel of 4 

()0 

Page 18 of 67



SECTION 4: APPLICATION AND LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS 
Using additional sheets if needed, briefly describe your responses to each criteria: 

1. Description of the client population to be served, including a description of the services provided to the cli
ents or residents of the facility and of any support or personal care services provided on or off site. 

Residents of Emerald House are clients of Monadnock Family Services and qualify as adults with severe 
and persistent mental illness. Emerald House staff offers coaching and prompting of ADLs, as well as 
making/keeping appointments, providing transportation, 1 :1 support in the community, ordering and 
administering medications, meal planning and preparation and crisis intervention. 

2. Description of the size and intensity of the facility, including information about; the number of occupants, 
including residents, clients staff, visitors, etc.; maximum number of beds or persons that may be served by the 
facility; hours of operations, size and scale of buildings or structures on the site; and size of outdoor areas asso
ciated with the use. 

Emerald House is a ten bed, 24-hour staffed facility. The ten beds are consistently filled. During the day, 
from 7 AM- 7 PM there may be 2-5 staff members on site and 1-2 other MFS or CFI personnel on the 
property working with clients. Residents may host up to 2 guests between the hours of 1 O AM and 5 PM. 
The facility has 4,616 ft. of living space and sits alone on a .24 acre lot. 

Page 3 of 4 

Page 19 of 67



SECTION 4: APPLICATION AND LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS CONTINUED 
Using additional sheets if needed, briefly describe your responses to each criteria: 

3. For Congregate Living Uses, describe the average length of stay for residents/occupants of the facility. 

The average stay at Emerald House is three years. 

Page4 of 4 

Page 20 of 67



Neighborhood Relations Plan 

We are surrounded by businesses, except at the back, which is college student housing. Due to 
their transient nature, we don't have a plan with them. 75% of the time residents are supported by 
staff_in the community, which gives staff and clients an opportunity to create healthy 
neighborhood relationships. Our residents frequent the local establishments and have a good 
rapport. There is no history of or current complaints of any nature. 

Building and Site Maintenance Plan 
Emerald House is owned by Keene Housing. For any and all building repairs or emergencies, 
staff can contact our Keene Housing Maintenance Manager 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. 

Page 21 of 67



Page intentionally left blank

Page 22 of 67



CLSS-2025-13 – Small Group Home Facility – Monadnock Peer Support, 24 Vernon Street 

Request: 
Applicant Stephen Tavella, Executive Director for Monadnock Peer Support, requests a license for 
a Small Group Home at the property located at 24 Vernon Street and is in the Downtown Core 
District.  

Background: 
Monadnock Peer Supports operates this facility, including 8 beds along with business operations 
and programing at this onsite facility. 

This is the second CLSS renewal sought by Monadnock Peer Support for this facility. 

Completeness: 
The property at 24 Vernon Street is seeking their second renewal. Several updates to plans and 
documentation have been made. Staff find their application to be Complete 

Inspections: 

Community Development’s inspection was completed on February 13, 2025 

Departmental Comments: 
 Property & Housing: No Comments 

 Fire Department: Only minor items noted during inspection 

 Police Department: No Comments 

Criteria Review: 
1) The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management

plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life
safety codes.

2) The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration that
adversely affects the surrounding area.

3) The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic,
pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions.

Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended: 

Move to approve CLSS-2025-13 for Monadnock Peer Support to operate a Small Group Home 
Facility located at 24 Vernon Street. 

Page 23 of 67



City of Keene, NH 

Congregate Living & Social Services 
License Application 

If you have questions on how to complete this form, please cali: (603} 352-5440 or email: communitydevelopment@keenenh.gov 

SECTION 1: LICENSE TYPE 

0 Group Home, small 

0 Group Resource Center 

0 Homeless Shelter 

0 Lodging House 

0 Drug Treatment Center 

0 Fraternity/Sorority 

0 Group Home, Large 0 Residential Drug/Alcohol Treatment Facility Q Residential Care Facility 

SECTION 2: PROPERTY LOCATION 

ADDRESS: 24 Vernon St, Keene, NH 03431 

SECTION 3: CONTACT INFORMATION 
I hereby certify that I am the owner, applicant, or the authorized agent of the owner of the property upon which this approva I is sought 

and that all information provided by me is true under penalty of law. If applicant or authorized agent, a signed notification from the prep 

erty owner is required. 

OWNER APPLICANT 

NAME/COMPANY: M d k p s rt NAME/COMPANY: M d k p s rt ona noc eer uppo ona noc eer uppo 

MAILING ADDRESS: 24 Vernon St, Keene NH 03431 MAILING ADDRESS: 24 Vernon St, Keene NH 03431 

PHONE: (603) 352-5093 PHONE: (603) 352-5093 

EMAIL= stephen@monadnockpsa.org EMAIL: stephen@monadnockpsa.org 
SIGNATU~__...._ 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

Stephen Tavella Executive Dire 

AUTHORIZED AGENT 
(if different than Owner/Applicant) 

NAME/COMPANY: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: DATE: 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 
Stephen Tavella Executive Directo 

OPERATOR/ MANAGER 
(Point of 24-hour contact, if different than Owner/Applicant) 

✓ measowner 

NAME/COMPANY: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: DATE: 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

Pagel of 4 

Page 24 of 67



SECTION 4: APPLICATION AND LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS 
Using additional sheets if needed, briefly describe your responses to each criteria: 

1. Description of the client population to be served, including a description of the services provided to the cli
ents or residents of the facility and of any support or personal care services provided on or off site. 

MPS is an intentional peer support agency {https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/programs-services/mental-health/peer-support-agencies) that 
provides mental health support as an alternative to clinical services. MPS progams are free and open to any NH resident 18 years or older 
who is a recipient or is at risk of becoming a recipient of mental health services. MPS has spent 30 years developing strong, connected 
relationships where people feel valued, become empowered, and move toward wellness and independence. Our programs are grounded in 
the principles of personal responsibility, mutuality, reciprocity, and respecting others thoughts and beliefs as valid and important. We 
encourage growth beyond stigma, shame, and the limits placed upon us, creating and maintaining a strong, active voice and presence 
dedicated to social change. 

MPS provides a peer support program that Includes over 40 kindred groups and social events each week. Members of MPS participate in 
selecting and choosing group topics and social events as well as providing input to the management and operations of MPS by attending 
community meetings monthly and sharing their perspective. Ali participants and members are required to read and sign the Members 
Rights and Responsibilities document that sels standards for behavior while at MPS. MPS is also holds groups with community partners, 
including American House, the Keene YMCA, Keene State College, and Cheshire County Jail. 

MPS also provides two residential programs. Step Up/Step Down provides a residence for up to 90 days for those who qualify and who are 
hoping to prevent hospitalization for mental health issues or who are returning to the community after hospitalization and need help 
re-acclimating. The Respite Program provides an emergency seven-<:lay stay for those who need to immediately separate themselves from 
a harmful situation in order lo focus on their mental health. Together, these programs can accommodate eight people at any one time. 

MPS provides transportatio:, for those in our program, as well as individual peer counseling led by trained Peer Support Specialisls with 
shared experiences. 

MPS has 16 staff members, 10 board members, and works in collaboration with the State of NH DHHS, Bureau of Mental Health Services 
and the 14 other Peer Support Agencies located in NH. 

2. Description of the size and intensity of the facility, induding information about; the number of occupants, 
including residents, clients staff, visitors, etc.; maximum number of beds or persons that may be served by the 
facility; hours of operations, size and scale of buildings or structures on the site; and size of outdoor areas asso
ciated with the use. 

The building is 12,640 square feet, and sits on .28 acres. We have eight furnished rooms for residents. 
Each is equipped with a twin-sized bed, plenty of linens, a personal refrigerator, and storage for clothing 
and personal belongings. There is a private, common living room space for residents. We also have 
shared common areas for residents and members, such as an industrial kitchen, a dining area, a fully 
equipped gym, and a group facilitation room. We also have a parking area that is 2,400 square feet, 
currently only being used for parking, and is also used as a pass through to a Keene Housing apartment 
building, The Bennett Block. We also house one dumpster for use by our facility and two surrounding 
entities (Keene Serenity Center and Keene Housing). 

During the day, we serve anyone in the community over the age of 18 with our day program offerings. 
We average about 40 people on site per day. We maintain a mailing list of roughly 500 members and 
participants. We offer outreach calls to members and participants during our open hours. 

Our public hours of operation are Monday through Friday 9am to 6pm. We have at least one staff 
member on-site, 24/7, so someone is always on-site with residents overnight. 

Page 3 of 4 

Page 25 of 67



SECTION 4: APPLICATION AND LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS CONTINUED 
Using additional sheets if needed, briefly describe your responses to each criteria: 

3. For Congregate Living Uses, describe the average length of stay for residents/occupants of the facility. 

We have two different categories of residents on-site. 

1. Respite guests: Respite guests have an average stay of six nights and seven days. 

2. Step Up/Step Down (SUSD): SUSD guests have an average stay of 90 days, and can be extended 
for an additional 30 days. 

Page4of 4 

Page 26 of 67



Monadnock 
PEER SUPPO RT 

Security Plan 

Monadnock Peer Support 

24 Vernon Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

603-352-5093/5094 

Last Revised: March 2025 

Page 27 of 67



The safety and security of our employees and staff is the first consideration of Monadnock Peer Support. 

Our philosophy is to ensure the safety and well-being of all while at MPS. To achieve this, MPS maintains 

a comprehensive plan that is geared toward continuous improvement of workplace safety. 

Al. Safety 

MPS' Safety Committee is charged with monitoring organizational risk management. This includes 

ensuring that the facility is clean and well-maintained; that all facilities and vehicles are compliant with 

local, state, and federal regulations, and that policies and procedures related to safety are up to date. 

The staff team regularly monitors, identifies, and addresses safety issues. With guidance from the Safety 

Committee, the Administrative Director is responsible to ensure that all safety plans, including 

emergency exit maps, fire, and threat responses are updated and posted. Emergency training will be 

required for all staff in 2025. 

A2. Security 

The upstairs area of MPS is open and available during the day for those who seek mental health support, 

and the entry is monitored by front line staff. Administrative staff work in the same facility, interact 
consistently throughout the day with participants, and are available as needed. The program area 

downstairs is locked unless a program is in session. 

The smoking area has been removed as it was attracting people who had no interest in participating in 

MPS. Since that removal in 2023, the number of incidents that required attention have been 

dramatically reduced. 

Monadnock Peer Support will ensure that all employees have access to cell phones, handheld two-way 

radios, and are monitoring the number of individuals in the building. The leadership team (called 

Support Central} have access to all cameras and footage. 

• MPS has twelve live cameras in the building to ensure the safety and security of its members 

and staff. 

• MPS has three exterior cameras to ensure the safety and wellbeing of members and staff. 

• MPS is continuously working with Keene PD, Keene Fire and Keene Mutual aid to find areas of 

improvement. 

Future Security Improvements: 

MPS will be improving security in 2025 -2026 by: 

• Renovating the entrance to provide better security coverage. 

• Upgrading the security system to include hard wired cameras and member management 

software. 

Page 28 of 67



Expectations 

Members will: 

• Follow the rights and responsibilities of MPS. 

• Not be permitted to bring drugs or alcohol into the facility. 

• Not be permitted to behave in an aggressive or inappropriate manner as outlined in our rights 

and responsibilities. 

• Not engage in sexual activities while at the center 

• Are not permitted to enter another person's room. 

Executive Director will: 

• Oversee and emphasize the importance of safety and security for all. 

• Ensure adequate resources to address security concerns. 

• Communicate policies and procedures to employees, members, and vendors. 

• Encourage employees to report safety and security concerns immediately. 

Directors will: 

• Set a good example by always following workplace best practices. 

• Ensure that equipment and work areas under their direction are safe and well kept. 

• Ensure that procedures are being followed for safety and security. 

• Ensure employees are adequately trained. 

• Participate with ED in regular safety and security procedures. 

• Respond promptly to reports of concerns. 

• Always be ready to dial 911. 

All other employees will: 

• Follow procedures and policies for working safely and in a secure environment. 

• Report any security issues immediately, 

• Document all incidents and submit them to the safety committee and the state of NH DHHS. 

• Communicate with Keene PD regarding issues that need attention and support maintaining the 

trauma informed model and individual. 

Page 29 of 67



Monadnock 
PEER SUPPO RT 

Staff Training and Procedures Plan 

Updated, March 2025 

Staff Orientation: 

Upon being hired, a new employee will receive a new employee orientation from their supervisor and an 

HR Representative on all aspects of the job, program regulations, personnel policies, pay, timesheets, 

benefits, etc. 

Training and Career Development: 

Employees are required to complete and maintain any certifications required under state rules, 

regulations, and contract requirements. MPS will provide details of such training and cover the costs. 

Trainings required by MPS will be compensated at the staff member's determined rate of 

pay. 

Employee Handbook: 

The employee handbook is updated regularly. This is led by MPS' HR Consultant and Administrative 

Director and is approved by the board of directors each time it is updated. All employees must read and 

sign off on the handbook when beginning employment and whenever the handbook is updated. 

Page 30 of 67



Monadnock 
PE,ER SUPPO RT 

AN INCLUSIVE AND JUDGEMENT-FREE COMMUNITY 
TO SUPPORT YOUR MENTAL WELL-BEING. 

Life Safety Plan 

Monadnock Peer Support 

24 Vernon Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

603-352-5093/5094 

Last Revised: March, 2024 

Page 31 of 67



A life safety plan is a plan in place for when an emergency situation occurs, and an egress route 
is needed in order to evacuate the building in a safe manner. 

Front of the building 
• Top Entrance and Exit 

■ Elevator for wheelchair or disabled individual 
• Bottom Entrance and Exit 

■ Elevator for wheelchair or disabled individual 
Back Entrances 

• One Entrance and 2 Exits to top floor 
• Two Entrances and Exits for bottom floor 
• Second Bottom Entrance has wheelchair ramp 

Facility is equipped with: 
• Exterior and Interior Emergency Lights 
• Exterior and Interior Exit Signs 
• Smoke/Carbon monoxide detectors 
• Sprinkler System 
• Accessible Fire Extinguishers in every room 

Page 32 of 67



Page 33 of 67



0 

0 

p 

~-.'ri·•w•-:-:-·""'" _.,..,..w.w_,Ll-.. .rL-,.,..
T'"",.,..,...,,_~-. 

~ ... l't~.,.,~ 
,-.ii:---,◄·~ ..... ... . 
,,, ........ ,. ... .,...... ... ,.,1 _ . ...,~--·--...,. .... ,,, .. 1 ...... _-...._1 ...... 

Page 34 of 67



Monadnock 
PEER SUPPORT 

Neighborhood Relations Plan 

Monadnock Peer Support 

24 Vernon Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

603-352-5093/5094 

Last Revised: March 2025 

Page 35 of 67



MPS believes that a safe, supportive, and connected neighborhood is vital to achieving our 
mission. We believe that MPS should take a leadership role in engaging our neighbors so they 
may understand our mission, values, and vision; participate in creating a safe and supportive 

neighborhood; and have a direct line of communication with MPS. To achieve this, MPS will: 

1. Hold quarterly neighborhood meetings on: 
a. Tuesday, February 4 {completed) 

b. Tuesday, May 6 

c. Tuesday, August 5 
d. Tuesday, November 4 

e. A new schedule will be developed for 2026 at the November meeting. 

2. Ensure all neighbors have contact information for the Executive Director. 

3. Engage neighbors by: 

a. Listening with the intent to learn 
b. Seeking input and feedback to improve the atmosphere in the neighborhood. 

c. Inviting them to events and to participate in programs. 

d. Educating neighbors about any plans, programs, or events that may impact 
them. 

4. Nurture effective relationships with the Keene Police Department and Keene Fire 
Department to help MPS ensure the safety and well-being of all connected with our 

organization, 
5. Reduce incidents of inappropriate behavior by: 

a. Removing the smoking area that attracted individuals with no interest in 

participating in MPS (completed) 

b. Eliminating services that attract individuals who are not participating in peer 

support. This will include: 
i. Eliminating showers for the public. 

ii. Eliminating food distribution for the public. 

iii. Eliminating use of the kitchen by the public. 

iv. Establishing protocols for computer use and internet access that support 

our mission. 

v. Providing additional transportation throughout the day to reduce the 

number of people loitering. Limiting transportation to 

members/participants who are attending groups and events only. 
vi. Revising our group and program schedule to attract a broader range of 

individuals seeking mental health support. 

vii. Encouraging connectivity between individuals from a range of socio

economic status. 

Page 36 of 67



c. Edit our current strategic plan that will provide strategies and tactics to engage a 

broader range of constituents and ensure that MPS is sustainable and striving to 

stay focused on its mission of providing peer support. 

Page 37 of 67



Monadnock 
PEER SUPPO RT 

AM INCLUSIVE & JUDGEMENT-FREE COMMUNITY 
TO SUPPORT YOUR MENTAL WELL-BEINO 

Health and Safety Plan 
Monadnock Peer Support 

24 Vernon Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

603-352-5093/5094 

Last Revised: March 2025 

Page 38 of 67



The health and safety of our employees and participants is the first consideration of Monadnock Peer 

Support. MPS has made a commitment to ensuring that our facilities and programs are safe and 

welcoming for all members of the Keene community and we are making significant changes to the 

program and services we provide so that we broaden our constituent base and reduce incidents that 

create safety issues. 

Al. MPS Goals 

MPS focuses on our mission of mental health support, reducing chances of injury, and broadening our 

constituency. To do this, we have taken the following actions: 

• Commissioned a safety committee made up of board members, employees, and tenants. 

• Launched a strategic planning process to address opportunities and challenges. 

• Hold meetings with all employees to discuss policy, roles, responsibilities, and avenues for 

communication. 

• Develop and explain clear procedures for reporting incidents, injuries, illnesses, and close 

calls/near misses. 

• Ensure all members and participants adhere to the MPS rights and responsibilities. 

• Conduct regular inspections using a checklist. 

• Discuss, reevaluate, and share emergency procedures. 

• Ensure all employees are trained in how to identify and control hazards. 

• Review and update as needed. 

A2. Resources 

Monadnock Peer Support will ensure that all employees will have access to training, equipment, 

personal protective equipment, substitute chemicals or other products, and materials like Safety Data 

Sheets and other information about chemicals used at the center. 

A3. Expectations 

Executive Director will: 

• Oversee program development and implementation. 

• Ensure adequate resources for anything needed. 

• Designate employees to conduct regular workplace inspections, incident reports, and 

follow up on corrective actions. 

• Communicate policy to employees, members, and vendors. 

• Encourage employees to report safety and health concerns through an open-door 

policy, as well as providing a suggestion box for participants and employees to report 

anonymously. 

• Determine whether program safety goals are being met. 

• Lead review of the program to see if it needs improvement. 

Directors will: 

• Set a good example by always following workplace practices. 

• Ensure that equipment and work areas under their direction are safe and well kept. 

Page 39 of 67



• Ensure that procedures are being followed for safe use of hazardous substances. 

• Ensure employees are adequately trained in safe work procedures. 

• Participate with ED in regular safety and health inspections following incidents and 
identification of hazards. 

• Respond promptly to reports of concerns. 

All other employees will: 

• Follow procedures and policies to work safely. 

• Report any injuries or illnesses to appropriate director. 

A4. Risk Mitigation 

MPS will collect information about hazards. 

• The Executive Director will review relevant information about potential safety and health 

hazards, including: 

o Applicable OSHA standards 

o Information about past incidents, injuries, and illnesses 

o Safety data sheets (SDSs) for hazardous chemicals 

o Equipment safety information 

o Close calls/near misses 
o Input from all employees about hazards. 

MPS will inspect the workplace. 

• The Executive Director will develop, use, and regularly update a checklist for potential job 

hazards. 

• Using the checklist, a designated party will conduct inspections in all areas of the facility: 

o Whenever an employee mentions a safety or health concern 

o Whenever we change processes, equipment, or materials. 

o Every month 

MPS will identify the hazards. 

• The designated safety committee member will identify any sources of health hazards in our 

workplace, such as: 

o Chemical hazards - by examining SDSs and product labels to identify chemicals in use. 

o Physical health hazards - by considering exposures to noise or heat. 

o Biological hazards - by considering exposures to bodily fluids, molds, or animal 

materials. 

o Ergonomic hazards - by evaluating activities involving repetitive motions, heavy lifting, 

work above shoulder height, or vibration. 

MPS will conduct investigations. 

Page 40 of 67



• The Executive Director or designated member of the safety committee will investigate injuries 

and illness to identify hazards and systematic failures that might have caused those injuries or 

illnesses. They will: 

o Train the people conducting investigations on incident investigation techniques, 

emphasizing the need to be open-minded. 

o Investigate the root causes of all incidents. 

o Initiate investigations within 24 hours or any incident reported. 

o Use corrective and preventive action processes following the investigation that includes: 

• Documenting findings and corrective actions 

• Describe how the recommendations will be implemented. 

• Verify completion. 
• Communicate findings to appropriate parties. 

• Monitor the corrective and preventive actions to determine effectiveness. 

• The Safety Committee will assess emergency situations and non-routine tasks workers might 

encounter, such as fire, weather emergencies, violence, etc. 

o For hazards identified, the ED will prioritize the need for control by considering. 

• Severity of hazard 
• Likelihood of recurrence 

• Number of people exposed. 
o The ED will implement any readily available interim controls immediately. 

Hazard Prevention and Control 

For hazards we identify or anticipate, the Executive Director and senior staff will gather and evaluate 

information about appropriate actions to take through input from employees, members, anyone above 

the ED at the state level, and other consultations. 

MPS will: 

• Plan to control hazards. 

• Prioritize hazards for control based on the seriousness of injuries or illnesses that could result. 

• Will make repairs as needed. 

• Update plan as it is implemented. 

For hazards that cannot be controlled immediately, MPS will: 

• Select and provide procedures to protect employees or members to prevent exposure to the 

hazard. 

• Reevaluate procedures as needed. 

• Document the control measures and hazard control as needed. 

• Communicate any plan to control the hazard agency-wide. 

For hazards that happen when the center is closed, MPS will: 

• Develop plans and procedures to respond effectively and safely. 

• Obtain any equipment needed to control emergency-related hazards. 

Page 41 of 67



• Incorporate relevant plans and procedures into training. 

MPS will provide education and training. 

Monadnock Peer Support will ensure that all staff receive training on the policies and procedures, how 

to report hazards, and how to manage hazards when the center is closed. The training will occur 

annually and for any new hires. The training will be conducted in an accessible way, and the organization 

will maintain records of all who have completed the training. 

MPS will train employees in their roles and responsibilities. 

Monadnock Peer Support will provide training to ensure every employee knows how they can 

contribute to the health and safety of the center, especially the importance of reporting health and 

safety concerns in a timely manner to the appropriate staff. 

Page 42 of 67



1 

Monadnock 
PEER SUPP\O RT 

AN INCLUSIVE AND JUDGEMENT-FREE COMMUNITY 
TO SUPPORT YOUR MENTAL WELL-BEING. 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 

MONADNOCK PEER SUPPORT 

24 Vernon Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

603-352-5093/5094 

www.monadnockpsa.org 

Date Revised: March, 2025 

Page 43 of 67



Emergency Personnel Names and Phone #'s 

When we are open: 

DESIGNATED RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL: Stephen Tavella, Executive Director: (802) 490-6854 

If ED is not here 

DESIGNATED RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL: Administrative Director, Karen Richi (603) 762-7574 

If ED and Administrative Director are not here. 

DESIGNATED RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL: Director of Mission Impact, Melissa Callender (603) 

762-5661 

• When we are closed: 

DESIGNATED RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL: Overnight Residential Staff; (603) 352 -5093 

2 

Page 44 of 67



EVACUATION ROUTES 

Evacuation route maps have been posted in each work area. The following information is 

marked on evacuation maps: 

1. Emergency exits. 

2. Primary and secondary evacuation routes 

3. Locations of fire extinguishers 

Site personnel should know at least two evacuation routes. 

3 

Page 45 of 67



Emergency Phone Numbers 

*In case of immediate emergency, please dial 911! * 

Fire Department: 

Central Station: (603) 357-9861 

Station 2: (603) 357-9886 

Fire Prevention Bureau: (603) 757-1863 

Fire Alarm Division: (603) 757-1864 

Police Department: 

Non-Emergency: 603-357-9813 

Records: 603-357-9815 

Poison Control: 

Hotline: 1-800-222-1222 

Administrative: 207-662-7222 

Fax Number: 207-662-5941 

Ambulance: 

Diluzio: (603) 357-0341 

4 

Page 46 of 67



UTILITY COMPANY EMERGENCY CONTACTS 

ELECTRIC: 

Eversource Customer Service: 800-662-7764 

TTY/TDD Hearing Impaired: 800-346-9994 

WATER: 

Main Office: 603-352-6550 

Water Billing: 603-352-3239 

After Hours Emergency: 603-357-9813 

GAS: 

OIL: 

Liberty Utilities Emergencies: 1-855-327-7758 

Customer Care: 1-800-833-4200 

Dead River Telephone: 603-352-5240 

Toll-Free: 800-442-5240 

PHONE/INTERNET: 

5 

Consolidated Communications: 1-844-968-7224 

Europa IT Support Line: 802-275-4848 

Page 47 of 67



6 

MEDICAL/CRIMINAL EMERGENCY 

• Call medical emergency phone number (see page 4) 

o Fire 

o Police 

o Poison Control 

o Ambulance 

• Provide the following information: 

o Nature of the medical emergency 

o Location of the emergency (address, room, etc.) 

o Your name and the number from which you are calling. 

• Do not move the person in distress unless necessary. 

• If personnel trained in First Aid and CPR are not available, attempt to provide the 

following assistance: 

o Stop bleeding with firm pressure on wounds (please avoid contact with blood or 

other bodily fluids) 

o Clear the air passages using the Heimlich Maneuver in case of choking. 

• In case of rendering assistance to personnel exposed to hazardous materials, consult the 

Poison Control number or website. Please wear the appropriate protective equipment. 

Page 48 of 67



FIRE EMERGENCY 

When fire is discovered: 

• Notify the local fire department by calling 911 or (603) 357-9861. 

• If fire alarm is not available, notify site personnel and members/guests by the following 

means: 

o Face-to-face 

o Phone call. 

Fight the fire ONLY if: 

• The fire department has been notified. 

• The fire is small and not spreading to other areas. 

• Escaping the area is possible by backing up to the nearest exit. 

• The fire extinguisher is in working condition and personnel are trained to use it. 

Upon being notified of the fire emergency, occupants must: 

• Leave the building using the designated escape routes. 

• Assemble in the designated area: sidewalk on the corner of Vernon Street and Elm 

Street 

• Remain outside the building until the Designated Official announces that it is safe to 

enter. 

Designated Official/Supervisors must: 

7 

• Delegate responsibility of assisting any physically challenged individuals to another 

member/participant/guest. 

• Disconnect utilities and equipment unless doing so jeopardizes her safety. 

• Coordinate an orderly evacuation of personnel/guests/members. 

• Perform an accurate headcount of individuals gathered in designated area. 

• Provide the Fire Department personnel with necessary information about the facility. 

• Perform assessment and coordinate with other staff to determine emergency closing 

procedures and how to transport guests/members if need be. 

Page 49 of 67



SEVERE WEATHER AND NATURAL DISASTERS 

Tornado: 

• When a warning is issued by sirens or other means, seek inside shelter. Consider the 

following: 

o Small interior rooms on the lowest floor and without windows, 

o Hallways on the lowest floor away from doors and windows, and 

o Rooms constructed with reinforced concrete, brick, or block with no windows. 

• Stay away from outside walls and windows. 

• Use your arms to protect your head and neck. 

• Remain sheltered until the tornado threat is announced to be over. 

Earthquake: 

• Stay calm and await instructions from the Emergency Coordinator or the designated 

official. 

• Keep away from overhead fixtures, windows, filing cabinets, and electrical power. 

• Assist people with disabilities in finding a safe place. 

• Evacuate as instructed by the Emergency Coordinator and/or the designated official. 

Flood: 

• If indoors: 

o Be ready to evacuate as directed by the Emergency Coordinator and/or the 

designated official. 

o Follow the recommended primary or secondary evacuation routes. 

• If outdoors: 

o Climb to high ground and stay there. 

o Avoid walking or driving through flood water. 

o If car stalls, abandon it immediately and climb to a higher ground. 

Blizzard: 

• If indoors: 

8 

Page 50 of 67



9 

o Stay calm and await instructions from the Emergency Coordinator or the 

designated official. 

o Stay indoors! 

o If there is no heat: 

• Close off unneeded rooms or areas. 

■ Stuff towels or rags in cracks under doors. 

• Cover windows at night. 

o Eat and drink. Food provides the body with energy and heat. Fluids prevent 

dehydration. 

o Wear layers of loose-fitting, lightweight, warm clothing, if available. 

Page 51 of 67



Monadnock 
PEER SUPPO RT 

AN INCLUSIVE AND JUDGEMENT-FREE COMMUNITY 
TO SUPPORT YOUR MENTAL WELL-BEING. 

Building and Site Maintenance Procedures 

Monadnock Peer Support 

24 Vernon Street 

Keene, NH 03431 

603-352-5093/5094 

Last Revised: March 2025 

Page 52 of 67



Building and Site Maintenance Procedures include cleaning communal areas, removing trash 
regularly to maintain a clean space for all individuals. Repairing items that are broken or 
replacing items that cannot be fixed. Inspecting, repairing, and maintaining electrical systems 
(heating, air conditioning systems, and utility services) are included in maintaining a safe 
environment for all individuals. 

• Kitchen 
o Checking fridges for leaks 

• Electrical tears in wires 
• Cooling temps 

• Fridge cleanliness 
o Checking ice machine/microwave/coffee makers and maintaining cleanliness 

• Electrical tears in wires 
• Leaks 
• Mold and mildew 

o Faucets 
• Plumbing 
• Dishwasher leaks and electrical tears 
• Garbage Disposal 

o Oven 
• Electrical tears 
• Electrical power outlet 
• Cleanliness 
• All knobs/buttons in working order. 

o Fire Alarms 
• Electrical tears 
• Batteries if needed. 
• Test as needed. 
• Fire extinguisher up to date and not used. 

o Mold and mildew check in ceiling and floors 
• Common Areas 

o Electrical Outlets 
o Fire Alarms are up to date along with fire extinguishers. 
o Cleanliness 
o The air conditioning is working properly. 
o Heating working properly. 
o Electrical Lights are working properly. 
o Mold and mildew check in ceiling and floors 

• Residential Areas 
o Electrical Outlets 
o Fire extinguishers and Fire alarms. 
o Exit signs are working properly. 
o Cleanliness 

Page 53 of 67



o Electrical Lights are working. 
o The air conditioning is working properly. 
o Heating working properly. 
o Mold and mildew check in ceiling and floors 

• Group Rooms 
o Electrical Outlets 
o Fire extinguishers and Fire alarms. 
o Exit signs are working properly. 
o Cleanliness 
o Electrical Lights are working. 
o The air conditioning is working properly. 
o Heating working properly. 
o Mold and mildew check in ceiling and floors 

• Staff Meeting Rooms 
o Mold and mildew check in ceiling and floors 
o Electrical Outlets 
o Fire extinguishers and Fire alarms. 
o Exit signs are working properly. 
o Cleanliness 
o Electrical Lights are working. 
o The air conditioning is working properly. 
o Heating working properly. 

Page 54 of 67



24 VERNON ST. 

Location 24 VERNON ST. 

Acct# 568058000000000 

Building Name 

Appraisal $685,600 

Building Count 1 

Current Value 

I 
Valuation Year 

--
12024 

I 
I Valuation Year 

---
2024 

Parcel Addreses 

Address 

34 WASHINGTON ST. 

I 32 WASHINGTON ST 
-

Owner of Record 

Owner MONADNOCK AREA PEER SUPPORT AGENCY 

Co-Owner 

Address PO BOX 258 

KEENE, NH 03431 

Ownership History 

Owner 

MONADNOCKAREA PEER SUPPORT AGENCY 

MONADNOCK COMMUNITY SERVICE CENTER INC 

Map/Lot# 568/ / 058/000 000/000 

Owner MONADNOCKAREAPEER 
SUPPORT AGENCY 

Assessment $685,600 

PIO 186 

Appraisal 

Improvements I Land 

--;-9~ 

Assessment 

Improvements Land 

$592,400 
-

Additional Addresses 

City, State Zip 

I 

Sale Price $350,000 

Book & Page 3160/0173 

Sale Date 04/21/2021 

Ownership History 

Sale Price 

$350.000 I 
$237,500 

I 
$93,200 

I 
$93,200 

Secondary 

Secondary 

Book& Page 

3160/0173 

2206/0175 

Total 

$685,600 

Total 

$685,600 

Type 

Safe Date 

04/21/2021 

12/21/2004 

I 
I 

Page 55 of 67



MOORE FRANKLIN H. JR. 

Building Information 

◄ 

Building 1 : Section 1 

Year Built: 

Living Area: 

Replacement Cost: 

I 

Building Percent Good: 

Replacement Cost 
Less Depreciation: 

Field 

Style: 

Model: 

Grade 

Stories: 

Occupancy 

Exterior Wall 1 

Exterior Wall 2 

Roof Structure 

Roof Cover 

Interior Wall 1 

Interior Wall 2 

Interior Floor 1 

Interior Floor 2 

Heating Fuel 

Heating Type 

Air Conditioning 

Bldg Use 

Bedrooms 

Full Baths 

Half Baths 

Frame 

Plumbing 

Partitions 

Wall Height 

FBLA 

Condo Complex 

Cov Park Spaces 

1920 

12,640 

$976,333 

60 

$585,800 

Building Attributes 

I 
Office Bldg 

Commercial 

D 

1 

2.00 

Vinyl 

I 

I 
1 Flat 

Tar&Gravel 

Description 

Drywall/Sheetrock 

Carpet 

Typical 

Unit Heaters 

Central 

Charitable Bldg 

Wood Frame/Joist/Beam 

Normal 

Normal 

12.00 

0 

$3 1046/0066 09/01/1983 

Building Photo 

(https://images.vgsi.com/photos2/KeeneNH Photos/\0017\IMG _ 0002_ 1787 • 

Building Layout 

7B 

OFF CX2) 80.0l 

BO 

I ,op 
17 

(Parce1Sketch.ashx?pid=186&bid=186) 

Building Sub-Areas (sq ft) Lfgtrut 

Gross Living 
Code Description 

Area Area 

OFF Office 12,640 12,640 

FOP Framed Open Porch 102 0 

12,742 12,640 

► Page 56 of 67



Extra Features 

Code Description 

SPR1 SPRINKLERS-WET 

Land 

Land Use 

Use Code 

Description 

Zone 

Category 

Outbuildings 

I 

Code 

977 

Charitable Bldg 

DT-C 

Description 

PAV1 PAVING-ASPHALT 

Valuation History 

I 

' I 
Valuation Year 

---
2023 

Valuation Year 

2023 

Sub Code 

·-

Extra Features 

Size Assessed Value 

6305.00 SF 

Land Line Valuation 

Size (Acres) 0.28 

Depth 
Assessed Value $93,200 

Appraised Value $93,200 

Outbulldlngs 

Sub Description Size 

2400.00 S .F. 

Appraisal 

Improvements Land 

$592,400 

Assessment 

Improvements I Land 

$592,400 

$4,200 

Assessed Value 

$2,400 I 

Total 

$93,200 ·' 

I Total 

$93.200 I 

Bldg# 

Lggend 

Bldg# 

1 

$685,600 I 

$685,600 

(c) 2025 Vision Government Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved . 

Page 57 of 67



\ /It 

\ 

\ 
\ 

DT-c 

51 
1.3 Ace 

DT-L 

--

54 
0.9J Ac: 

9 

31 

23 

--

I 
I 

........ , 
65 

o.,o-'<C 

63 
o.sa Ace 

20 
0 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

64 
70 

0.43 Ace 

73 

71 
040 Ace 

Page 58 of 67



• 
Recording fee: $25.00 (Note 1) 
Use black print or type. 
Leave I" margins both sides. 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSIIlRE 

ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT 
OF 

FI LED 
OCT 2 3 1995 

WILLIAM M. GARDNER 
NEW HAMPSHIRE 

SECRETARY OF STAlE 
Form No. NP 1 

RSA292:2 

A NEW HAMPSHIRE NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING PERSONS OF LAWFUL AGE, ASSOCIATE UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED, 
CHAPTER 292 BY THE FOLLOWING: 

Article 1. The name of the corporation shall be: 

Granite State 'Monarchs 

Article 2. The object for which this corporation is established is: 

To establish a safe place where consumers/survivors of mental health services 
can gather together to share their experiences without judgments and can be 
supported in their efforts to improve the quality of their lives. 

Article 3. The provisions for establishing membership and participation in the corporation are: 

Members must self identify as having received or are currently receiving 
mental health related services. They shall have a commitment to the purpose 
for which the Corporation was established. 

Article 4. The provisions for disposition of the corporate assets in the event of dissolution of the 
corporation including the prioritization of rights of shareholders and members to corporate assets 
are: 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, the organization is 
organized exclusively for one or more of the purposes as specified in Section 
501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and shall not carry on any 
activities not permitted to be carried on by an organization exempt from 
Federal income tax under IRC 50 I ( c) {3) or corresponding provisions of any 
subsequent tax laws. 

page 1 of3 

114 
--

Page 59 of 67



_,. . 

• 

NAME OF CORPORATION 
Granite State Monarchs 

Articles 4. (continued) 

Form No. NP I 
RSA292:2 

No part of the net earnings of the organization shall inure to the benefit of any 
member, trustee, director, officer of the organization, or any private individual 
( except that reasonable compensation may be paid for services rendered to or for 
the organization), and no member, trustee, director, officer of the organization or 
any private individual shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the 
organization's assets on dissolution of the organization. 

In the event of dissolution, all of the remaining assets and property of the 
organization shall after payment of necessary expenses thereof be distributed 
to such organizations as shall qualify under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent Federal tax 
laws, or to the Federal government of State or local government for a public 
purpose, subject to the approval of a Justice of the Supreme Court of the State of 
New Hampshire. 

The mission of this organization is to empower people towards their own healing 
and recovery. We will do this through peer support, self-help groups, warm lines, 
newsletters, outreach, education, understanding, caring or other compassionate 
alternatives. Our goal is to provide a safe atmosphere where all our peers can gather 
together in unity and friendship. 

Article 5. The address at which the business of this corporation is to be carried on is: 

139 Roxbury Street, Keene, New Hampshire 03431 

Article 6. The amount of capital stock, if any, or the number of shares or membership certificates, 
if any ,...and provisions for retirement, reacquisition and redemption of those shares or certificates 
are: 

There shall be no capital stock. 

Article 7. Provision eliminating or limiting the personal liability of a director, an officer or both, 
to the corporation or its shareholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a 
director, an officer or both is: (Note 2) 

Granite State Monarchs shall indemnify any and all of its Board members and staff 
against all costs and expenses reasonably incurred by them or any of them in 
connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which they, or any of 
them, are made parties, or a party, by reason of being or having been members of 
Granite State Monarchs, (such expenses to include the cost of reasonable settlement 
made with a view toward curtailment of the cost of litigation) except in relation to 
matters as to which any such Board member or staff shall be adjudged in such action, 
suit or proceedings to be liable for misconduct in the performance of duty. Such 
indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those 
indemnified may be entitled under any agreement or otherwise. 

page 2 of3 

Page 60 of 67



: ~ ... : .. ; . 

• 

• 

• 

11g 
NAt.'iE Of CORPORATION Form No. :-lP 1 

RSA 292: 2 

Article 8. Signatures and post office address of each of the persons 
associating together to for.n the corporation: (Note 3) 

Post 

Name (please print) 

J. [h,.itfifa g_ a' 1M/4d 
Signature St..eet 

J2" €<o±k->{-r-·1Ricllc1t e (please pr nt · 

4 • lJ:~l 
lif-OV 

CiyTown / 
nJ,tf. 
State 

p.o. eox ,s,o 
Street 

BRADFo R.Jl 5. H uTc,J1tJSt1u 
Name (please prin~ 

5. ~ 11urlri:1L 

k~,:,v~. Ntl O 3't 11 -1~ .ic, 
City Towu State Zip 

/1fx5" /2-{c. I;;?, 
Street 

!vlctureen <F'redetfe 
Name (please print) 

lvnrn lrtllu,R, /1(. tl.. fH3 1./bZ 
City Town ~~ate Zip 

City/Town Clerk's office, City/Town of Keene NH · -----==-=---------Received and recorded this 18th day of October 19&_. 
(Note 4) 

gnature 

. ./ 
/ 

,Judi th M. Sweeney ~ 
City/Town Clerk's Name (Please Pr±nt) 
(Deputy) _ 

Notes: 1. Recording fee payable to: N. B. Secretary of State. 
2. If 00 provision elimioatiog or limiting personal liability, insert 

"NONE", 
3. At least five signatures are required. 
4. Must be recorded with the Clerk of the City/Town of the principal 

place of business prior to recording with the Secretary of State. 
(Fee payable to the clerk is $5.00.) 

Mail hS .00 STATE FEE and DUPUCATE ORIGINALS (ORIGINAL SIGNAnJRES ON BOTH) 
to: Secretary of State, State House, Room 204,.107 North Main Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-4989 ·· 

page 3 of 3 
11/93 

j 
' ' 

Page 61 of 67



Page intentionally left blank

Page 62 of 67



CLSS-2025-14 – Group Resource Center – Keene Serenity Center, 24 Vernon Street 
 
Request: 
Applicant Samuel L Lake, Director for Keene Serenity Center, requests a license for a Group 
Resource Center Facility at the property located at 24 Vernon Street and is in the Downtown Core 
District.  
 
Background: 
Keene Serenity Center operates this facility as a group resource center Monday- Friday 9 AM-5 
PM with some evening or weekend training sessions that are typically 2 hours or less.  There are 
no residential services offered. 
 
This is the second CLSS renewal sought by Keene Serenity Center for this facility. 
  
Completeness: 
The property at 24 Vernon Street is seeking their second renewal. No changes have been made 
to their documentation. Staff find their application to be Complete. 
 
Inspections: 
 
Community Development’s inspection was completed on February 13, 2025 
 
Departmental Comments: 
            Property & Housing: No Comments 
 
            Fire Department: Only minor items noted during inspection 
 
            Police Department: No Comments  
 
Criteria Review: 

1) The use is found to be in compliance with the submitted operations and management 
plan, including but not limited to compliance with all applicable building, fire, and life 
safety codes. 

2) The use is of a character that does not produce noise, odors, glare, and/or vibration that 
adversely affects the surrounding area. 

3) The use does not produce public safety or health concerns in connection with traffic, 
pedestrians, public infrastructure, and police or fire department actions. 

Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended:  

Move to approve CLSS-2025-14 for Keene Serenity Center to operate a Group Resource Center 
Facility located at 24 Vernon Street. 

Page 63 of 67



r 
City of Keene, NH 

For Office Use Only: 
Case No. _ ___ _ 
Date Filled ___ _ 
Rec'd By ____ _ 

Congregate Living & Social Services 
License Application 

Page __ of __ _ 
Tax Map# _ _____ _ 

Zoning District: 

If you have questions on how to complete this form, please call: (603} 352-5440 or email: communitydevelopment@keenenh.gov 

D Drug Treatment Center 

D Fraternity/Sorority 

D Group Home, Large 

SECTION 1: LICENSE TYPE 

D Group Home, Small 

lilf' Group Resource Center 

D Residential Drug/ Alcohol Treatment facility 

SECTION 2: PROPERTY LOCATION 

D Homeless Shelter 

D Lodging House 

D Residential Care Facility 

ADDRESS: 24 Vernon St, Keene, NH 03431 

SECTION 3: CONTACT INFORMATION 
I hereby certify that I am the owner, applicant, or the authorized agent of the owner of the property upon which this approva I is sought 

and that all information provided by me is true under penalty of law. If applicant or authorized agent, a signed notification from the prop
erty owner is required. 

OWNER 

NAME/COMPANY: 
Keene Serenity Center 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

24 Vernon St, Keene, NH 03431 

PHONE: 
603 283 5015 

EMAIL: 
sam.lake@kscrecovery.org 

APPLICANT 

NAME/COMPANY: 
Samuel L. Lake 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

24 Vernon St, Keene, NH 03431 

PHONE: 
603283 5015 

EMAIL: 
sam.lake@kscrecovery.org 

SIGNATURE: DATE: SI DATE: 

~ · 7-V~;~ 
PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

Samuel L. Lake Director 

AUTHORIZED AGENT 
(if different than Owner/ Applicant) 

NAME/COMPANY: 
Monadnock Peer Support 

MAILING ADDRESS: 
24 Vernon St, Keene, NH 03431 

PHONE: 
603 352 5093 

EMAIL: Stephen@MonadnockPSA.org 

DATE: 

,,'J Ii-, /1.,, 5 
PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

Stephen Tavella Director 

TITLE: 
Samuel L. Lake Director 

OPERATOR/ MANAGER 
(Point of 24-hour contact, if different than Owner/ Applicant) 

lilf' Same as owner 

NAME/COMPANY: 

MAILING ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: DATE: 

PRINTED NAME: TITLE: 

Page I of 4 

Page 64 of 67



r 
-

SECTION 4: APPLICATION AND LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS 
Using additional sheets if needed, briefly describe your responses to each criteria: 

1. Description of the client population to be served, including a description of the services provided to the cli
ents or residents of the facility and of any support or personal care services provided on or off site. 

We are a Recovery Community Organization (RCO) that offers peer support for those experiencing substance use disorder, including family 
members and support staff. 

We offer recovery coaching by individuals that either have been state certified as Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) or trained 
peers as Peer Recovery Support Specialist (PRSS). Coaches are required to complete extensive training along with 500 voluntary hours 
under supervision of an approved supervisor. Engagements can be one one, telehealth or in group sessions depending on the request of 
those being served. 

Our facility is set up to allow support type groups to use our space such as mutual aid groups (alcoholics anonymous, all recovery and the 
like). Some of our groups are volunteer created and lead such as crafting in recovery or meditations groups. 

We host a transportation program called Road to Recovery (RTR) that started as volunteers loaning time and personal vehicles and now 
has moved to operating our own vehicle that was donated by a supporting partner business. We currently offer in excess of 80 rides per 
week, many are to support individuals getting to medicated assisted treatment. The basic critea to utilize our program is simply- does this 
support your recovery? We help with many doctors appointments, trips to and from treatment or housing opportunities. 

We operate a harm reduction program called GROW SSP (guerilla recovery support worker) (syringe service program). The program 
supports people by offering education and supplies that reduce risk of overdose or the spread of disease and injury. Our participants take 
the education about harm reduction out into the community and share with peers. We partner with all other SSP's throughout the state and 
are part of NH Harm Reduction coalition. 

We are non- clinical and refer those in need of clinical care to an appropriate partner, often the Doorway at Cheshire Medical. 

We do not offer any housing or overnight services outside of referals to qualified organizations. 

2. Description of the size and intensity of the facility, including information about; the number of occupants, 
including residents, clients staff, visitors, etc.; maximum number of beds or persons that may be served by the 
facility; hours of operations, size and scale of buildings or structures on the site; and size of outdoor areas asso
ciated with the use. 

We lease approximately 3,500 sq ft of space in the lower lever of 24 Vernon Street. The remainder of the building is housed by our 
landlord- Monadnock Peer Support (MPS). Our space consists of 2 large shared offices and a good sized space that is used for groups, 
trainings and activities. The center of the space acts as hallway and common area. We have 2 bathrooms. Our participants have full 
access to resources at MPS which is an amazing asset as they have a larger meeting space, a gym and 2 housing support programs. 

We are a day program only, with no beds or overnight support. 

We currently have 5 full time staff and 1 part time. We utilize a number of volunteers that offer peer support, facilitate groups or support 
our other programs. 

Our general hours of operation are M-F from 9-5:00 however we do have groups or trainings that may take place evenings or weekends
most are under 2 hour time frames. 

We do not have any real outdoor space other than shared use at MPS. 

Page 3 of 4 

Page 65 of 67



SECTION 4: APPLICATION AND LICENSE RENEWAL REQUIREMENTS-CONTINUED 
Using additional sheets if needed, briefly describe your responses to each criteria: 

3. For Congregate Living Uses, describe the average length of stay for residents/occupants of the facility. 

Our full time staff work 40 hours which some of that time is done out of facility doing outreach or meeting peers in public, Participants are 
usually onsite just over an hour. (many groups or coaching services are 1 hour) 

Again we do not have housing so our participants leave at the end of day. 

Page4 of 4 

Page 66 of 67



Neighborhood Relations Plan CLSS 

We are a Recovery Community Organization and our mission is: "To build a community that embraces all 

pathways to recovery through peer support and community engagement in a safe environment" . 

Having strong, inclusive neighborhood partners is the key to our success- following the idea that 

"together we can accomplish that which I, alone cannot. 

Some of the ways in which we support a Neighborhood Relations Plan is to : 

• Hold and post regular office hours. (M-F 9-5) 

• Support a social media profile and manage links and comments for Facebook and tik tok. 

• Support an active website ( www.kscrecovery.org with open email link - info@kscrecovery.org 

• Phone service including available anytime access to the Director. 

• We host outreach events all over the city including at the public library most Fridays from 1-3. 

• We offer harm reduction trainings to any organization or individual that asks. 

• We accept used syringes for disposal and will go out and offer disposal services as an outreach. 

• We have working partnership relations with most organizations in our neighborhood. Such as 

the Community Kitchen, Monadnock Peer Support, Parenting Resources, Probation, Drug Court 

and Planned Parenthood. 

We have an internal ethics team that is available to handle concerns such as complaints. We are also 

part of a larger Ethics committee that includes members from Harborcare and all 20 Recovery 

Community Organizations across the state. 

We answer all public inquiries or complaints promptly and with an open mind. 

At this time we do not have any open cases or complaints. 

Page 67 of 67


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



